ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 18, 2010
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Linda Menard, Chair
Senator Kevin Meyer, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh
Senat or Joe Paskvan

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 260

"An Act relating to electronic voting procedures for electric
and tel ephone cooperatives; and providing for an effective
date. "

- MOVED SB 260 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 261
"An Act relating to the nenbership of the Al coholic Beverage
Control Board; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED SB 261 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 260
SHORT TITLE: ELECTRI C & TELEPHONE COOPERATI VES' VOTI NG
SPONSOR(s): STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 05/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 10 (S) STA, JUD
02/ 18/ 10 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 261
SHORT TITLE:. ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE CONTROL BD MEMBERS
SPONSOR(s): OLSON

02/ 05/ 10 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 10 (S) STA, L&C

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -1- February 18, 2010



02/ 18/ 10 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
W TNESS REG STER

PH L STEYER, Director of Government Relations and Corporate
Communi cat i ons

Chugach El ectric Association

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 260.

Rl CHARD GAZAWAY, Advi sory Section Manager

Depart ment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econonic Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information for SB 260.

GREG BERBERI CH, CEO

Mat anuska Tel ephone Associ ati on (MIA)
Mat anuska, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 260.

TI' M BENI NTENDI

Al de to Senator d son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 261.

DALE FOX, President and CEO

Al aska Cabaret, Hotel, Restaurant and Retailers Association
( CHARR)

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on SB 261, but advised
hol ding the bill for input fromindustry nmenbers.

ROBERT FROEHLE, Superi nt endant

Regi onal Wl | ness Forum ( RWF)

Nome, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 261.

Bl RDI E TRAI NOR, Director

Coed Wl I ness Program and Sui ci de Prevention Program

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Berda WIIlson, Chair,
Regi onal Wl | ness Forum (RFW, in support of SB 261.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:01:16 AM

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 2- February 18, 2010



CHAIR LINDA MENARD called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Meyer and Menard.

SB 260- ELECTRI C & TELEPHONE COOPERATI VES' VOTI NG

9:01: 52 AM

CHAI R MENARD announced that the first order of business to cone
before the conmttee was SB 260. She turned the gavel over to
Vi ce-Chair Meyer.

SENATOR MENARD, sponsor of SB 260, said SB 260 gives telephone
and electric cooperatives the option of allow ng nmenbers to vote
by electronic transmssion. Currently, co-op nenbers my only
vote in person or by nail. These nethods are outdated and could
be having a negative inpact on nenber participation in
el ections. She noted that the fiscal note for SB 260 is zero

The Matanuska Tel ephone Association (MIA) nenbers have already
voted to adopt a new bylaw allowing electronic transm ssion
voting. MIA, and other co-ops, now need the Legislature to anend
the statutes to allow el ectronic transm ssion voting.

9: 04: 40 AM

PH L STEYER, Director of Government Relations and Corporate
Communi cati ons, Chugach Electric Association, said Chugach
Electric is an Anchorage-based, nmenber - owned  cooperative
providing electric service and is strongly supportive of SB 260.
He stated that electronic transm ssion voting would be optional,
not mandatory, and co-op nenbers would also need to anend their
bylaws to enact it. Chugach has already amended its own byl aws
to enable electronic transmssion voting if state statute is
changed.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if co-ops are going to electronic voting.

MR. STEYER replied that co-ops in the Lower 48 are going to
el ectronic voting. He said Chugach Electric has spoken with sone
firme who provide this service elsewhere about providing
el ectronic voting in Al aska.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if SB 260 has had any opposition.

MR. STEYER replied no, not that he knows of. He said a lot of
work has been done to put the idea of electronic voting out
there and take input from different cooperatives during the
resol utions process in the Al aska Power Association. Any issues
have been resolved to get to SB 260 today. He explained that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 18, 2010



real key for co-ops is that electronic voting is optional and
would only be taken up by co-ops whose nenbers vote to anend
their byl aws.

9:08: 05 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if the inplenentation of electronic voting
woul d cost the coops noney or save them noney.

MR. STEYER replied that, for Chugach Electric, he believes the
costs would increase initially but would decrease later on.
Setting up and processing electronic voting would cost nopney
initially. He explained that nmenbers would still be mailed a
bal |l ot packet, with the option for electronic voting included

for at least the first few years. Eventually, the system could
change so that nenbers who prefer to vote electronically would
notify the co-op and not be sent a packet. Mney wll be saved
in the long-term

VI CE- CHAI R MEYER asked if a paper trail wll be avail able should
the validity of the electronic voting be chall enged.

MR. STEYER replied that the nethod used to inplenent electronic
voting would determine if a paper trail would be kept; Chugach
El ectric has not decided on the nmethod. He said Chugach, or any
co-op, should not engage in electronic voting unless an el ection
woul d be fair, secure and able to wi thstand any chal | enge.

SENATOR MENARD said different conpanies that set up electronic
voting woul d have securities in place.

9:12: 05 AM
SENATOR MEYER noted that other states use electronic voting with
success.

RI CHARD GAZAVAY, Advi sory Section Manager, Department  of
Commerce, Community & Econom c Developnment (DCCED), said he
prepared the fiscal note and is avail able for questions.

GREG BERBERI CH, CEO, Matanuska Tel ephone Association (MrA), said
MIA is a nenber-owned cooperative providing local, |ong-
di stance, wreless broadband internet and DTV services. He
stated his support for SB 260 and said the Internet has changed
comuni cation and business. In 2007, MIA nenbers overwhel m ngly
voted to adopt a change in its bylaws to allow electronic
voting. He said electronic voting wll be faster and nore
efficient, save printing costs, nake counting nore efficient and
reduce wasted paper.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 18, 2010



9:15: 08 AM

He noted that MIA's bylaw includes provisions that if electronic
voting is conducted, nenbers will have three options to vote
el ectronically, in person or by mail upon request.

SENATOR MEYER asked if MIA has an auditor during elections to
verify that soneone is not voting in person, on paper and
el ectronically.

MR. BERBERICH replied yes and said that an independent firm
conducts the el ections.

9:16: 15 AM
VI CE- CHAI R MEYER cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR FRENCH noved to report SB 260 from committee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
bei ng no objection, the notion carri ed.

9:17: 05 AM

VI CE-CHAI R MEYER announced an at ease from 9:17 a.m to 9:18
a. m

SB 261- ALCOHOLI C BEVERAGE CONTROL BD MEMBERS

9:18: 40 AM
CHAI R MENARD said the next itemto cone before the commttee was
SB 261.

TIM BENI NTENDI, aide to Senator O son, said SB 261 responds to
the array of alcohol related problenms unique to small
comunities in rural Al aska. WlIlIlness services cannot keep up
with the adverse inpact of alcohol related problens. The profile
of these problenms needs to be raised. The state's Alcoholic
Beverage Control Board (ABC) is conprised of five nmenbers, two
of whom nust be actively engaged in the alcoholic beverage
i ndustry and three of whom represent the general public. SB 261
would require one of the three general public positions to be
filled by a resident of a rural area. SB 261 defines "rural
area" as a community with a population of 4500 or less that is
not connected by road or rail to Anchorage or Fairbanks. A
defined rural board nenber could affect policy discussion and
ABC Board decisions in a positive way.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 18, 2010



SENATOR MEYER asked for exanples of comunities that would
qual ify.

MR. BENINTENDI listed several communities that would qualify:
DI lingham Unal aska, any comunity in the Lincoln Peninsula
Bor ough, None and Kotzebue. He noted he is referring to cities
or communities as opposed to census areas. He stated that SB 261
woul d not take effect until the next available public nenber
seat turns over

9:22:49 AM

SENATOR MEYER noted sone areas under 4500 are dry comrunities
and asked if someone from a dry community should be on the ABC
Boar d.

MR. BENINTENDI replied yes, an applicant from a dry community
would be valid. He explained that while dry communities are
officially dry, they still have alcohol related problens and
rural representation on the ABC Board could bring attention to
t hese problens and sone specific focus into the forum

SENATOR FRENCH sai d he questioned how to define a rural area. He
asked if our statutes define "community" and how big of an area
a comunity is.

MR. BENI NTENDI replied that he originally | ooked at a definition
of a small comunity as 5500 people. He said communities of that
size have nore resources; SB 261 is aimng at smaller
conmuni ties and their issues.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if Auke Bay or Douglas, in the Juneau
region, are smaller comunities.

MR. BENI NTENDI replied that Auke Bay and Douglas are within the
Juneau City and Borough and woul d not be eligible.

SENATOR FRENCH said soneone from the greater Juneau area, for
exanple, should not be the rural representative. He said he
supports the idea of SB 261 but is concerned that "comrunity"
could be interpreted as a subset of a city or a borough.

9: 26: 08 AM
CHAI R MENARD asked about Southeast conmmunities that would be
el i gi bl e.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 18, 2010



MR. BENI NTENDI replied he thought any community outside of a
borough in Southeast would qualify. He noted that Ketchikan and
Sitka woul d be too big but Skagway and Angoon woul d be eligible.

DALE FOX, President and CEO Al aska Cabaret, Hotel, Restaurant
and Retailers Association (CHARR), noted only ten days had
passed since SB 261 was posted online and CHARR S Governnent
Affairs Commttee has not had a chance to review it. CHARR
menbers have expressed, through initial enmails, that they don't
think a problem exists and that governors have done a great job
of balancing boards. He said the five current ABC nenbers are
from Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau and Cordova. Belen Cook, from
Cor dova, would fit the definition of rur al comunity
representative according to SB 261. He noted that M. Cook is
Chair of the annual Sobriety Celebration in Cordova and is very
concerned about alcohol issues. He asked the commttee not to
pass SB 261 out until the industry has an opportunity to review
and discuss it.

9:29:14 AM
CHAI R MENARD said SB 261 goes to Labor and Comrerce next which
woul d al | ow anpl e opportunity for CHARR to wei gh in.

ROBERT FROEHLE, Superintendant, None Youth Facility and nenber,
Regi onal Wl |l ness Forum (RW), said the RAWF is in strong support
of SB 261. He said he appreciates that the ABC Board currently
has a nmenber from Cordova and would like to ensure that small
communities continue to get representation. He said he sees the
effects of alcohol on daily basis on the community's kids and
famlies.

BIRDIE TRAINOR, Director, Coed WlIllness Program and Suicide
Prevention Program testified on behalf of Berda WIIlson, Chair
of the Regional Wellness Forum (RFW. M. Trainer read a witten
statement from Ms. WIllson. M. WIIson wote that she has seen
the ravages that alcohol and substance abuse are inflicting on
her people. She wote that the RW supports the Safety Patrol,
made up of about 150 volunteers, which patrols during the PFD,
New Year's Eve and the Iditarod to keep residents and visitors
safe and to reduce suicides, mssing persons and death by
acci dent or freezing when people are intoxicated.

9:33:17 AM
She wote that the RAWF' s next neeting will be held at the Anvil
Mountain Correctional Center where inmates wll talk about how

RW  can hel p them prevent repeati ng their m st akes.
Anecdot al | y, 90 percent of the prisoners would not be

SENATE STA COWM TTEE -7- February 18, 2010



incarcerated if al cohol abuse were not a factor. She wote that
rural conmunities need a voice on the ABC Board from soneone who
understands rural problens |ike suicide, child abuse, donestic
vi ol ence, accidental death and al cohol abuse. She noted that
while nost villages are dry, alcohol is sold or bootlegged. Her
witten statenent concluded that the RW is not against alcoho
consunption and appreciates the ABC Board's help in ensuring
that |iquor establishnments conformto state |aw

9:34: 48 AM
CHAI R MENARD cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR MEYER asked if anyone fromthe ABC Board was present.
CHAI R MENARD repl i ed no.

SENATOR MEYER said that the sponsor of SB 261 wants to ensure
that rural representation on the ABC Board continues, which he
feels is a good idea.

SENATOR FRENCH concurred. He said he has some concern with the
definition of "community" but noted that a subsequent conmittee
can grapple with it to make sure the intention of SB 261 is
ful filled.

CHAI R MENARD reported that Senator Kookesh joined the neeting.

9:36: 59 AM

SENATOR FRENCH nobved to report SB 261 from conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
bei ng no objection, the notion carried.

9:37:24 AM

CHAI R MENARD, seeing no further business before the commttee
adj ourned the neeting at 9:37 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 18, 2010



